PATENTS ISSUED DURING THE REGAL GOVERN-
MENT.

The book in which the patent was recorded, the page, the patentee’s
name, date of issue, number of acres and locality of the lands..

Jamzes Ciry CouUNTY.
Book No. 1.

Page 460. Thomas Smith, Aug*. 21, 1637. 350 acres. Adjoin-
ing Weaver’s plantation South'y towards a branch of
Kethes Creek.

461. Thomas Smith ass*® of Silvester Totnam, 1635. 100 acres.
The said one hundred acres granted to mee.

462. Thomas Weekes, Augt. 21, 1637. 100 acres abutting Chip-
pokes Creek & W= Rookins dividend lying on the west.

463. Humphry England, Augt. 21, 1637. 150 acres. Up Chick-
ahominy river, being a neck of land called the red bank
pointing to an Island belonging to Will® Morgan.

464, George Burcher, Aug' 22, 1637. 200 acres near the head
of a little creek Easterly towards the mouth of Lawnes
Creek.

465. George Burcher, Augt. 22, 1637. 300 acres. At the upper
Chippokes, bounding upon the land of John Hatcher.

466. Alexander Stomar, Aug. 23, 1637. 1acrein James Island,
near the Brick kill, being 24 per®. in length & 7 per®. &
3 in breadth.

468. George Holmes, Augt. 24, 1637. 350 acres. At the head
of Kethes Creek being bounded between two swamps.
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469.

469.

472,

474.

485.

490.

493.

496.

504.

520.

521.

527.

531.

John Brodwell, Augt. 24, 1637. 300 acres. Part of the
said land, being an Island, lying west upon Chicka-
hominy river, against the place called the Gulfe.

Thomas Ellis, Augt. 24, 1637. 50 acres. Butting North
East upon Clay bank, lying at the Creek’s mouth. -

John Davis, Augt. 26, 1637. 250 acres. In Chickahominy
river, adjoining the land of Samuel Kirby.

Samuel Snead, Aug'. 28, 1637. 200 acres. Begg. at the
head of Kethes Creek, adjoining the land of George
Holmes. Note “This patt. renew?. & March 19, 1643
in the name of Alice Snead.”

Francis Fowler, Oct’. 25, 1637. 1200 acres. Part of the
land lying on the west side of Juring point creek: Beg.g
at a cross creek a mile above Juring point the Cross
creek run.g &e.

Samuel Edmonds, Oct’. 23, 1637. 350 acres. Easterly
upon the land of Jeremiah Clements, northerly upon
the mouth of the upper Chippokes neck.

Samuel Curbye, July 9, 1636. 200 acres. South west upon
a creek called Tanks Pasbye Hayes Creek adjoining the
land of John Dansey N. Et. upon Chickahominy.

Richard Kemp, Secretary, Nov. 14, 1637. 600 acres. Near
James City as might conveniently be found should be
laid out & taken up to belong to the place of Secretarie.

David Mansell, Nov". 24, 1637. 500 acres. Adjoin.g to
the plantation or neck of land now in the possession of
the said Mansell.

Richard Brewster, Feb.y. 6, 1637. 500 acres. Being a
neck of land called the great Neck also the barren Neck.

John Carker, Feb.y. 10, 1637. 6 acres. In James Island
near unto Goose hill, being a ridge of Land called by
the name of rindle ridge.

Bennett Freeman, May 26, 1638. 450 acres. On the Eas-
terly side of Chickahominy, being a neck of land oppo-
gite to the land of Will™ Beard. .

Edward Travis, Jan.y. 25, 1637. 900 acres. Upon the
head of upper Chippoecks Creek, adjoin.g. upon the
South west side of the land of Jeremiah Dickenson.
Note: “This patt. was renewed in the name of Edward
Travis & John Johnson.”
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625.

626.

627.

629.

630.

631.

635.

640.

640.

640.

On Chickahominy river, up towards the head of Checq-
neroes Creek. Note—: “This patt. renewed in the name
of Robert Holt the 237 July, 1640.”

Thomas Swan, Mar: 1, 1638. 1200 acres. Upon the
Southern side of James river, bounded West upon
Smith’s mount to the half way neck.

Edward Travis & John Johnson, Sonn of John Johnson,
decd. Feb.y 25, 1638. 900 acres. Lying upon the head
of the upper Chippokes Creek; adjoining the Land of
Jeremiah Dickenson.

George Grace, Mar. 7, 1638. 1000 acres. W™in Chicka-
hominy river, adjoining the land of Bridges Freeman, &
running downward towards the head of a creek called
Pagan Creek.

John Bradston, Sept*. 26, 1636. 350 acres. On the South-
ern side of the river, in the bottom of the Bay called
Pipscoes Bay, adjoining Eastward upon the swamp.
Note—: “It appears by a memo. at foot of Record that
the land is assigned of John Fludd of Westover planta-
tion in Virg®. See another memo.”

John Nortons deed to Edward Sanderson. Nov®. 1, 1638.
One house and 12 acres of land, in James Island,
bounded to the Eastward of James City & abutting West-
ward on a marsh.

Thomas Gray, May 26, 1638. 550 acres. Over against
James City, adjoining on the north side of the land
which is now in the possession of Thomas Swan.

David Munsell, Oct’. 10, 1638. 250 acres. Adjoining the

ke .
land"of Thomas Loving in Martins hundred, Northerly
by a ridge of land whereon the Church standeth.

Edward Oliver, Ap'. 16, 1639. 450 acres. Upon the South
side of Chickahominy river, &c called by the name of
Mattahanck. Note—: “This pat'. was renewed & 300
acres added to it.”

Edward Oliver, Ap'. 16, 1639. 300 acres. At the head of
Chickahominy river, upon the north side of the same
called by the Indians w** the name of Crestipa. Note—:
“This patt. was surrendered up & the land taken up to
the former patt.”

Samuel Trigg & Raphaell Joyner, Ap'. 17, 1639. 300 acres.
On Chickahominy river, & Southerly upon an Island of
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641.

641.

642.

642.

643.

646.

646.

647.

647.

647.

648.

W= Wiggs being near about two miles up w'in the
mouth of Warranye Creek towards the head. Note—:
“Patent assigned from Trigg to Joyner & renewed in
the name Joyner & Porter & 500 acres added unto it.”

William Bassett, Ap'. 18, 1639. 150 acres. Bounding East
and West upon Chickahominy river, Northerly into the
woods called by the Indians w*® the name of Pattacocock.

John Osborne, Ap'. 26, 1639. 300 acres. At the upper
Chippokes Creek joining upon the North East side of
the land of Jeremiah Dickenson.

Edward Travis, Ap'. 25, 1639. 300 acres. On Warriny
creek, adjoining the land of Bennet Freeman & W=
Wigg. See Book No. 2, pa. 363.

William Wigg, Apl. 13, 1639. 350 acres. On the head of
Warriny creek, upon the northerly branch, adjoin.g unto
the land formerly granted to him by patent. The ab-
stract of this patt. will be found in the book styled “no
county,” not having the name of the County in the pat.
1t is possible that the land lies in the County of James
City, which is the reason of its being introduced here.

Edward Travis, Apl. 25, 1639. 800 acres. On Chicka-
hominy river, being a neck of land called Pease hill.
Note—: “This patt. included another of 1080 acres.
Book No. 2, pa: 363.”

William Davis, May 11, 1639. 200 acres. Adjoining
patented land of Alexander Stomer.

Walter Cooper, Apl. last. 350 acres. Due East upon Pow-
hatan swamp bridge.

John White, Apl. 9, 1639. 350 acres. On Chickahominy
river, Beg.g at the 1°t point of wood of the hither side
of the lower gulfe.

John Dunston, May 20, 1639. 250 acres. In hogg Island
main, East upon the land of Robert Sheppard.

John Dunston, May 20, 1639. 600 acres. In Hogg Island
main. Beg.g upon a valley coming out of the great
swamp called the Arrow reed swamp.

William Fairefax, Feb.y 20, 1619. 200 acres. 12 acres,
situate in the Island of James City, about the now man-
gion house of said Fairefax. 188 acres situate upon or
near Archers hope.
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